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BANKS, FINLEY,
WHITE & CO.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Edward Jones, Mayor
and Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Grambling, Loulslana

Report on-tho Financlal Statements

We have audlted the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Grambling,
Louisiana (City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic ﬁnanclal statements as listed In the table of
contents.

Management's Reasponsibllity for the Financlal Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and falr presentation of these financial statements In
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error,

Auditor’s Responsibliity -

Our responsibility Is to express an oplnion on these financial statements based on our audit We
conducted our audit In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the slandards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures In
the financlal statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors Judgment, Including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant: toithe-City's:
preparation and falr presentation of the financlal statements In order to design audit procédures that sare'
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing aniopinion on the effectiveness af
the City's internat control. Accordingly we express no such oplnion. An ‘audit also includes evaluating mau
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates’
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of theifinancialistaterments.

We believe that the audit evidence we have abtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Oplnlon

In our opinion, the financial statements-referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financlal position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major
fund of the Clty of Grambling, Louisiana, ‘as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the
respective changes In financial position and cash flows thereof and budgsetary comparison schedules for
the year then ended In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America.
Emphasls of Matter Regarding Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Clty of Grambling will
-continue as a going concemn. As discussed in Note 14 to the financial statements, the City has suffered
recurring losses from operations and has a fund balance .deficiency in the General Fund that raise
.substantial doubt about its abllity to continue as a going concemn. Management's plans in regard to these
matters are also described in Note 14. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might
result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our oplnion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplemental Information

Accbintingprinciples "gengrallylaccepted in*theUnited"States] of America require that the management's
discussion and anaiyaismndlbuﬂgemry comparison inferma%mwsmmgas‘s ‘14 and 21-22 be presented to
sug::piameni the basic fmzamsa%f&tammeats Such information, althoughi not a part of the basic financial

—mtemsmt& is required by tﬁeit‘smvemmaniai Accounting Standards Board!, who considers ltlfr:ﬁba.an
&s@antmt part of ﬁmnm&hr@p&rﬁﬁg fm’ placing the basls financial themﬁntmm*ars‘agpm;sﬁam aparaﬁanai'
-ecmomic: or historical ]oontext_'Wavnava applied certain limited procedures; jm%he reqtired sﬁpp&&m&ﬂi&fyl
;nf@rmatxan in aa,cariﬁaneamthlaud*img standards generally accepted.In the u;m:; States of Americal,
whsch consisted of mqums of lmanagemeni about the mﬁimﬁa of preparing lthf: information andl
aom;sarmg the mfamxatmn] for consistency with management's reaponse to our |inquiries, the basic.
finam:sai statements, and t:athar. kmwlatige we obtained during,ounauditiof theibasic; financial s;%atamants'
We do not express an opiniohwor provide any jassurance-on the Information lbacause-‘ma -Ismstaci‘
procedures do,not provide us,with sufficient evidence)to express an opinlon or provide any assurance.

‘Supplementary and Other Information

Our-audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Clty of Grambling, Louisiana's, basic financial statements. The accompanying
supplementary information, as fisted in the table of contents and the other information, as listed in the
table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements.

The:acwm;mnymg suppieam&ntaryl Information, as listed in the table of contents is the responsibility of
imanagement and was derived fromijand rélates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
rusad fo prepare the basic financiall statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
lpmcadwes applied in the amﬁﬂ of the basic financlal statements and certain additional procedures,
:znz:%udmg comparing and reconcil ihg] such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
Ffecerﬁs used to prepare the baslc fmanciallstatements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
-and other additional procedures in acmréance-with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
'ﬁmtes of America. In our opinion, the accampanymg supplemental information, -as listed In the table of
-mnieﬁ%s ;a fasrly stated in all material respects.in relationto the basic financial statéments as a whole.




The accompanying other information, as listed in the table of contents, has not.been subjected to the
auditing procedures applled in the audit of the baslic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not
express an opinion or-provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Audlting Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 13, 2014,

on our consideration of the City of Grambling; Loulsiana’s internal control over financlal reporting and on
our tests of Its compliance with certaln provlsions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
intemal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
'performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in oonsidenng the .City's internal contro!
over financial reporting and compliance.

Bad b WK 3G

Ridgeland, Mississip
June 13,2014
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CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2013

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Grambling, Louisiana’s financial performance provides an
overall review of the City’s financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2013.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Our financial statements provide these insights into the results of this year's operations:

Govemmental activities reported an increase in net position of $22,092 from 2012 to 2013,
whereas business-type activities reported a decrease of $182,063. The increase in net position of
the govemmental activities was due to an increase in revenues. The net position of the business-
type activities went from an increase in 2012 of $241,244 (including a prior period-adjustment of
$50,000 to a decrease of $182,063 In 2013, primarily because of two transfers from govemmental
activities of $585,676 in 2012.

Total governmental activities revenues Increased $253,412 or 10.85% from 2012 to 2013.
Program speclfic revenues Increase by $189,951 or 5§1.77%, due to an'increase in capital grants
and contributions. General revenues had a net increase of $63,461 or 3.22%. Increases in
property taxes revenue of $269,477, fines and forfeitures of $249,403, and miscellaneous
revenues of $79,439 was more than enough to offset the decrease In sales tax revenue of
$479,852 included in general revenues.

The $69,694 decrease in business-type activities expenses was primarily due to decreases in
personnel costs of $60,676. Other minor increases and decreases combined to form the total
decrease.

Total expenses for governmental activities was $2,567,807 in 2013. $556,880 of these expenses
were offset by program specific revenues. General revenues of $2,033,018 were adequate to
cover the remaining govemmmental activities expenses.

The General Fund's fund balance decreased by $192,879 during 2013 as compared to a
decrease in 2012 of $279,875. Revenues Increased by $113,847 while expenditures decreased
by $98,756 from 2012 to 2013. Transfers in were $160,106 and $50,309, for 2013 and 2012
respectively. Transfers out were $13,794 and $112,050, for-2013 and 2012 respectively . Sales of
capital assets totaled $333,660 during 2012 while there were no sales during 2013.

The‘General*Fund's' flind. balance-is a deficit of $827,862 due to several conditions. When the current
Iacfmzmstrmmn took office;on.anuary 1, 2011, the deficlt was $216,845. There havelbeemmwy iﬂstam::%l
$an& January 2011 wﬁar&k}yzmanagemn%ms learned of prior obligations, such f{;r liability insurance andl
.wesrkman s compensation iisurance, that contributed to the current deficit in that %hesé ofd bils had to ml
ammﬁd The old bills azsa.tcmk cash that was needed to pay current bills. Currentlmanagamant has mattim
almﬁwriw affort to make:repalrs and improvements to city facllities and systems. This effort has caxxsaﬁl
a Rﬁmgmrwy increase in expenditures that Is expected to result in savings in thelfs:mg run by properiy:
mamta%raiﬂg faciities emd systems and preventing unnecessary repairs. Also, the rCtiy has purchasedl
;;smrserty fo include in tm development of a hotel, restaurant, and other businesses i tha.{my that ar&s:
eaxpmt@d to generate signifi Qﬁ&fii property and sales tax revenues in the future as well' as increasing:
licenses and permits. and.utility, revenues:




CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2013

In addition to the development plans, the City is analyzing expenditures to identify areas where costs can
be reduce at least until revenue increase. Management Is focusing on salaries and benefits es they are.
the largest expenditures of the City and because many costs are fixed costs that the City cannot reduce.

During 2013, the City allocated expenditures to other funds where possible to ease the burden on the

General Fund.

The Health and Sanitation Fund's fund balance decreased $45,122 in 2013 as compared to an increase of
$173,180 in 2012. Health and Sanitation Fund's revenues were $362,097 which is $211,104 or 36.83%
less than 2012 revenues. The decrease was due to a one-time settlement of protested sales taxes of over

$200,000 during 2012,

Health and Sanitation Fund's 2013 expenditures decreased by $152,408 or 38.10% from 2012. The
decrease [n fotal expenditures was due to capital outlay and debt service payment in 2012 that was not
incurred in 2013,

The Debt Service Fund had an increase in fund balance of $1-In 2013 as compared to a net decrease In’
2012 of $50,030. The increase was due to a reduction of debt service requirements in 2013.

The Capital Project Fund had a decrease in fund balance of $1,224. from 2012 to 2013. The decrease
was due increases In capital expenditures over revenues allocated during 2013.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

The City's annual report consists of a series of financial statements that showﬂmfgmatm for the City @s:a

whole, and its funds. The Statement of Net Poslition and the Statement of /Activities gmwc%&*m%maﬁw

about the activities of the City as a whole and present a longer-term view ofhtze Cm finances. For m;f,-
governmental activities, the fund financial statements tell how we financed our- mmms in the shorb-term

as well as what remains for future spending. Fund statements elso may give [you some insights inlo ﬁm

Clty's overall financial health. Fund financlal statements also report the City's! o;;emtzan i, more detail than

the govemment-wide financial statements by providing Information about the City's most mgmﬁmnt funds -

the General Fund, Health & Sanitation, Debt Service and Capital Project Fund!




CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Management's Discussion and Analysls
December 31, 2013

The following chart reflects the Information included In this annual report.

T s

Required Supplementary information
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MVD&A

I BASIC:FINANCIAL STATEMENTS! _ -~ |
b Government-wide, : Fund Efhanclal;
ElnanclalStatemenfs: ,  Statements;

|Rﬁquired{s upplementary Information
Maintenance Entm*prsse Fund aam;mazwa Statement of Net Position
-Maiblenance Enterprise Fund’ Proptsed Budget
'Schedule of Compsensation Paid Council Members
Sahaéu & of Insurance ﬁw&raga -
Schedule’ :::f Breakdown of Utility f}ﬁgwmars
Schedule of Water,and, SewerRates:

Reports on Internal Control and Compliance
Schedule of Findings and Responses
Other Information
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings
Corrective Action Plan for Current-Year Findings and questioned Costs

Our auditor has provided assurance In the independent auditors' report, located Irmmxaaﬁataiy gsremdmg
this Management's Discussion and Analysis, that the Basic Financlal Statements are fairly stated. Varying -
degrees of assurance are being provided by the auditor regarding the Require Supplementary informamn!l-
the Supplementary Information and Other Information identified above. A user:of Ltms report should read,
the independent auditors' repart carefully to ascertain the level of assurance belng provided for.gach ofthé.
other parts of this report.

Reporting the City as a Whole
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

timr ana%‘gm bt e City asia wholel#wgmsmm) the government-wide financlal statements. One of the
n;xgqﬁt important questions dsked about'the Cmty‘s finances is, "Is the City as @ whole better off or worse off’
as[:a result of the vear's aatzvmes’?}"ﬂ" bexStatemﬁnt,of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, which
la;apaw first in the City's financial statements, report information about the City as whole and its activities in
:a way that helps answer ims question. We prepare these statements to include all assets, liabilities and
l&%f@md inflowsioutflows of resources, using the accrua basis of accounting, which s similar to the
laccou;ztmg used by most private:sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are

ltaken into,account regs&rdless of-when cash Is received or paid.
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CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Management's Discussion and Analysis
"~ December 31, 2013

These two statements report the City’s net position - the difference between assets, liabilitles and deferred
inflows/outflows of resources,-as reported in the Statement of Net Position - as one way to measure the
Clty's financiat health, or financlal position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net position - as
reported In the Statement of Activities - are one indicator of whether its financlal health is Improving or
deteriorating. The relationship between revenues and expenses Is the City's operating results. However,
the City’s goal Is to provide services to our citizens, not to generate profits as commerclal entities do. One
must consider other nonfinanciat factors, such as the quality of police and fire protection, the conditions of
the City's roads, and the quality of water, sewer and sanitation systems to assess the overall heaith of the

City.

In the Statemént of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into two kinds of
activities:

Governmental Activities - most of the City's basic services are reported here, including the police,
fire, street and general administration. Property taxes, franchise fees, licenses and fees, fines and
forfeltures, and state and federal grants finance most of these activities.

Business-type Activities - The Clty charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of the
cost of certain services It provides. The City's water and sewer systems are reported here.

Reporting the City's Most Slgnificant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

The City's fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds - not the
City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law. However, the Cily establishes
other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes (like the capltal project fund) or to
show that Is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants and other money. The City's two
kinds of funds - govemmental and proprietary - use different accounting approaches:

‘Governimental funds - Governmental fund reporting focuses on showing how money flows into
rand out of funds andlthe batances left at year-end that are available for spending. They are
reported using an ac:cauntmg method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash
and all other financial lassets that can readily be converted to cash. The govemmental fund
statements providea detailed short-term view of the City's operations and the services it provides.
‘Govarnmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial
resources that can'berspent In the near future to finance the City's programs. We describe the
refationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net
'Pogfgan andithetStaterdi'Activities) and governmental funds in the reconciliations (Statemerits D
and.F)

Proprietary funds - When the City charges customers for the services It provides, these services
are generally reported In proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported In the same way that all
activities are reported In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the
City's malntenance enterprise fund (a component of proprietary funds) are the same as business-
type activities we reported in the government-wide financlal statements but provide more detall
and additional information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds.




THE CITY AS A WHOLE

CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2013

Our analysis below focuses on the net position (Table 1) and changes In net position (Table 2) of the
Clty's governmental and buslness-type activities.

.Current and other assets
Capitat asssts, net
Totat assets

Current and other ilabilittes
Long-term liabilities
Total Liabllities

Deferred Inflows of resources

Net position

Net Investment in capltal assets
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total net position

Table 1
Net Poslition
December 31,
Governmental Adlivities Business-tvpe Activities Mot
2013 2012 2013 2012 . 2013 2012 °
.s 649552 s 762,857 $§ 346,759 § |{zzsm;$ msw s 740,242

—1.889,094
sHaion sZgsiom s BareR s airer, s_cosiel saseen

586,436 349,038 569,955 302,688 1,166,391 851,728
169,586 346,193 ~1.821.752
756,022 695,231 1,870,768 1,676,247 2,626,818 2,273,478
16.574 = - 2 16,574 =
2,166,139 1,690,609 681,232 881,814 2847371 2,472,623
1,011 116‘ 1056238 - 1011 115 1056236

—{1.184,159)
3—4% 3_1m ’J&l s.=.am 3&&@3 s.z,m




CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Management's Discussion and Analysls
December 31, 2013

Table 2 .
Changes In Net Position
For the Year Ended December 31
otal
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Revendes: . - - -
Program Revenue; ' .

Charges for services $ 161,326 $ 368920 $ 9095512 § 823392 $ 1,156,838 $ 1,180,321

Operating grants and confributions 20,183 - - 119,785 20,183 119,785

Capital grants and contributions 375,371 - 67,926 - 473,297 -
Ganeral Revenue: :

Property taxes 764,656 495179 73,350 68,585 838,008 663,764

Sales taxes 517,821 997,673 - - 517,821 697,673

Fines and forfeitures 286,277 35,874 - - 288,277 36,874

Licenses and permits 180,173 215,203 - - 180,173 215,203

Interest Income 170 325 - 49 170 374

Intsrgovernmental revenue 63,727 83,548 - 14,000 63,727 97,548

Miscellaneous 220185 __ 140756 __(42579) __ (44176) 177616 ___98.580
Total Ravenues 2569890 2306487 1124200 __E81635 _ 5714108 3318122

General Government 869,809 816,203 - - 869,809 818,203

Public safety 1,327,606 1,389,200 - - 1,327,608 1,389,299

Health and sanitation 265,511 316,528 - . 265,511 316,628

Parks and recreation 2,052 9,851 - . 2,052 8,851

Highway and streets 89,135 35,639 - . 89,135 35,639

Interest on long-tarm debt 13,794 15,812 - - 13,784 15,812
Business-type activitles: :

Uity enterprise - : 1308272 1376068 _ 1306272 _1376.868
Total Expenses —2.561.807 _2583,522 1306272 __137586G _ 3874070 _3.900460
Increase {decrease) In Net Position

Before Transfers and Special ltems- 22,092 (247,035) {162,063) (384,331) {169,871} (641,366)
Transfers in (out) 5 - {585,575) - - -
increase (decrease) in net position —{832.610) 641,366)
Net position, beginning 1,961,003 ~ 2,793813 549,120 307,876 2,510,123 3,101,489
Prior period edjustment : — - 60000 - 60000
Net position, restated —1B61.003 _2783613 _ 8409320 . _ 3876876 _ 2610123 _ 3151488
Net Posilor Ending $.L83005 §_1801.003 §__367.057 §__540120 $,_2350162 $.2610.23
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CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2013

Governmental Activities-

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $2,567,807. However, as shown in the Statement of
Activities. the amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activitles through City taxes and
other revenue was $2,010,927 because some of the cost was paid by those who directly benefited from
the programs and grants in the amount of $556,880.

Table 3 presents the cost of each of the City's governmental aclivities as well as each program'’s net cost
(total costs less revenues generated by the activities). The net cost shows the financial burden that was
placed on the City's taxpayers by each of these functions.

Table 3
Governmental Actlvities
For the Year Ended December 31

‘Total Costof Services, Net'Costof Services;
2015 1 2012 1 120031 2012

Generahgovernment: $ 1869,809] $ 8162931 §| (B28,809)- § (B16,203)
Bublic safety‘ 1,327, *3:{)61 11380,2991  (1,.307,323) (1,181,158),
%éﬁsaftﬂ and sanitaﬁan 265,511 316,528 (104,185) (154,740},
?-‘arii and f&Ct‘ﬁﬁt%Of‘i‘ 2,052 Q’%% (2,052) {8,961}
IHighway angd stfa&t& 89,135 35 6391 245 336 {35 638}.
Ifni‘emm on icmgnwrmxdﬁb!«

“Total Program.Expenses $ {2,010.927) agiggs 593 )l

Table 4
Buslness-Type Actlvities

For the Year Ended December 31

Business-Type Activities

The following table presents the cost of activities of the Clty. The table also shows the net cost (tota! cost
less charges for services generated by the activity). The net cost shows the financlal burden that was
placed on taxpayers by the activities.

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services

2013 2012 2013 2012 _
Business-Type Activities
Utility enterprise $1.306.272 $1.375968 $.(212.834) $(432.789)
Total Program Expenses 51306272 $1376066 (212834 $(432.789)

Revenues and expenses of the City's business-type activities as shown in table 3 remained relatively
stable for 2013 compared to 2012.

1




THE CITY'S FUNDS

CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Management's DIscussion and Analysis
December 31, 2013

As the City completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $162,029
which is a decrease of $239,224 In fund balance from last year. See the financial highlights section for

more details.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Original total budgeted expenditures in the General Fund were $2,190,000. Amendments increased total
budgeted expenditures by $87,000. These amendments were the result-of an analysis of variances from
estimates at the time the original budget was prepared. Signlificant individual accounts amended were:

Salaries $ 99,000

Employee group insurance (10,000)

Office supplies (32,000)

Contracted services {(15,000)

Capital outlays 45,000
CAPITAL ASSETS

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the City had invested In the following capital assets:

[Land _
tGonstruction in progress
[Buildings

lrfrastruciine’

“ehicles

[Eurndture and sguiprsent
Sewage plant

Water system)
Wilrtersewsr squipment
Total Capital Assels
[Vess: Aceurnulated Deprac.
[Nat Caplital Assety

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Govemnmental Activities j

2013 2012 2013 2012

$ 217002 § 217,002 § 49,462 § 49,182
20,973 18,500 - X

1,869,005 1,869,005 239,004 239,004
313,043 . . -

- . - 36,066 37,066
1,345,742 1,308,045 . .

. . 3,656,312 3,701,163

- - 1,085,304 1,801,567

3,776,665 3,411,452 7,160,955 7,122,899

— 2973017

—1.610,426 1,518,075
PecZ108038 51693377

[§

Ay

$ 267,084

fag,973
2,108,000
313,843
(36,088
11345,742
3,656,312
1,985,394!
LA904 597
40,637,520,
~8.888.287:

2012
$§ 267,084
16,600
2,108,009

37,088
1,308,045

3,701,163
1,801,587

1,194,997
10,534,451

At December 31, 2013, the City’s Maintenance Enterprise fund had $1,345,000 in bonds payable
outstanding and a capital lease in the amount of $23,286 outstanding and the Governmental funds had
debt consisting of $302,768 In certificate of indebteness. For further details see Note 10 to the Basic

Financlal Statements.
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CITY OF GRAMBLING, . LOUISIANA
Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2013

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

Our elected and appointed officials and cltizens consider many factors when setting the City's budget and
tax.rates. One of the most important factors affecting the budget Is our property tax and sales tax
collections. Property and sales tax make up more than 40% of 2013 revenues. The 2014 budget includes
vary little changes in property tax and sales tax revenues. Major plans for 2014 include developing an area
of the City to Include a total and restaurants. Management will strive to Improve the City's financial
condition by restricting expenditures to needs and by searching for.ways to arise revenue, such as with the
total and restaurant development. Management expects future needs to be more and more manageable
as routine obligations and repair and maintenance needs are brought up to date.

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Our financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers; and Investors and creditors with a
general overview of the City's finances and to show the City's accountability for the money it receives, If
you have questions about this report or wish to request additional financial nformation, contact Edward
Jones, Mayor, at the City of Grambling, P. O. Box 108, Grambling, Louislana 71245, telephone number

(318) 247-6120.
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CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA

Statément of Net Position

December 31,.2013

ASSETS

“CashEnd’ cash aquivalents
Jtmfas%mems L

INst rawmabm

"Pfe;;aid ex;;en&eﬂ

.Due from ofher funds)

“Restricted Assetd)

ICash and cash etuivalents-
~Gap§tal Assets not being depreciated:

.mm:i I8

lﬁm&tmmsim‘m progiress.

Capi!ai assals net of amumuiatad‘depwciauon
Fﬁuﬁdmm and impmvaments'
‘Automotive and equipment]
fifzfmﬁtmamre ]

TQTAL ASSETS:

: t&AEELtTRSSJ
t&mun{s xs&avaisl&-
qAccrued and othér liabilities
iﬁtﬁmst payable o long tetm debt
iCustomer deposits payable from restricted assets
[Due to other funds |
mmwrmﬁ% kabﬁﬁi&&
«Due within one yam
1Due in fnore than Dnis year
f‘rmaiﬁabﬁiﬁas

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred revenues
Total deferred outflows of resources

NET POSITION:
Investment In capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
‘Debt service
Health and sanitation
Unrestricted
Total Net Positlon

Statement A

___ PrmaryGovernment -
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

$ 56,451 $ 47,440 $ 103,801
1,011 . 1,011
379,494 139,401 518,895
. 1.484 1,484
212,586 - 212,696
- 160,434 160,434
217,902 49,182 267,084
29,973 - 20,873
1,447,802 13,454 1,461,358
162,378 30,655 192,033
— 307,984 1785803 —2.103.887
$_2.0816601 $__2.237.863 $_06083.544
$ 274,632 $ 153,543 $ 428175
116,317 24,863 141,180
7.434 . 7.434
. 101,085 101,085
. 212,588 212,586
188,053 77,868 265,921
—168,586 —1.300.841 —1.470.427
— 156,022 —1.870.798 —2.526.818
— 76574 — — 18574
2,166,130 681,232 2,847,371
1,131 - 1,131
1,009,984 - 1,009,084
—{1.184,159) —{314.175) {1,508,334)
$-—1.0083.008 L —-7 474 $-2.350,162

The Accompanying Notes are an Intergral part of these Financial Statements.
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Primary Government:
Govermnmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Health and sanitation
Parks and recreation
Highway end streets
Interest on long-term debt
Total govemmental activities

Buslness-type activilles:
Utlity Enterprise .
Total Business-type activities

Total

i . o ‘Statement B
CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Statement of Activites
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Net (Expenses) Revenues and
[ Cha 8l
Operating ‘Caepltal i Business-
Charges for Grants and Grantsand  Governmental Type .
Expenses Service Contributions  Contribullons Activities Actlvities Total

$ 669800 § - s . $ 40800 $ (828909) $ - $  (828,009)
: 1.327.5% - 20'183 - (1»3073323) - (1l307.323)
283,611 161,326 - - (104,185) - {104,185)
2,052 - - - (2,052) - (2,052)
89,135 - - 334,471 245,338 - 245,338
13.784 - - - — 112,799 : {13,789
2567807 181,326 20183 __375371 _(201092p ___ - = _ (2010827)

212830 __(212.634)
$_[21283¢) §_(2223761)

L306272 995512 : 82.928 :
S 3874079 $.1106608 S 20103 §__473207 §_[201082)

General Revenues:; -

Property taxes : $ 704655 § 73350 § 838,008
Sales taxes 517,821 - 517,821
License and permits 380,173 - 180,173
Fines and forfellures -286,277 . 286,277
Interest Income k(o - 170
Intergovernmentat cevenues =83;727] - 63,727
Miscellaneous P .' 2
Total general revenues, special ltems, and transfers ) r 30.771
Change In net posilion ¥k '(182,063) (159,971)
Net Position - Beginning 111961,003) :

.Net Posltion - Ending

The Accompanying Notes are an Intergral part of these Financlal Statements.

16

_ 540120 _ 2510123
|1,983.006! 8__307.007 $_2350182




Statement C

CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Balance Sheet

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Receivables, net

Accounts receivable _
Intergovernmental recelvable
Interfund receivables

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable, general
Accrued and other ilabllities
Interfund payables

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred revenues
Total deferred outflows of resources

Fund Balance:
Restricted
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Govemmental Funds
December 31, 2013

Health Total
Generel and Debt Capltal Governmental

Fund Sanitation Service Project Funds
$ 30026 $§ 25204 $§ 1131 § - $ - 56451
616 3gs - - 1,011
197,498 33,775 - - 231,273
67,468 - - - 67,468
76,087 - - 4,867 80,754
$—471067 $1014615 $__1.131 $_4667 $_1491480
$ 265422 $ - $ - $ 65891 $ 271,313
115,008 4,631 - - 119,637
841.927 - . - 841,927
—1222355 __4631 S 6891 __1232877
— 16574 - : - 16,574
16574 - . - 76.574
- 1,009,984 1,131 (1,224) 1,008,891
{827.862) - . - (827.862)
—{627.082) 1000884 ___ 1331 __(1.229 ___182,029

51131 S__4667 §_ 1401480

The Accompanying Notes are an intergral part of these Financial Statements.
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Statement D
CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.
of the Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2013

Total fund balances - govemmental funds $ 182,029

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:

The cost of capital assets (land, buildings, fumiture and equipment and infrastructure)
purchased or constructed is reported as an expenditure In governmental funds. The
Statement of Net Position Includes those capital assets among the assets of the City as
a whole. The-cost of those capltal assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives
{as depreciation expenss) to the various programs reported as governmental activities in
the Statement of Activities. Because. depreciation -expense does not affect financlal
resources; it Is not reported in governmental funds.

Cost of capital assets 3,776,565
Accumulated depreclation {1.610.428) ‘
2,166,139

Long-term [abllities applicable to the City's govemmantal activities are not due and )
payable in the current period and accordingly are not reporied as fund liabllities. All
liabilities - both current and long-term are reported in the Statement of Net Position.
Balances at December 31, 2013 are:

Compensated absences (64,871)

Bonds payable (302,768)

Interest payable {1439 )

, « (365,079

Net Positlon of Governmental Activities $_1.983.095

The Accompanying Notes are an Intergral part of these Financial Statements.
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CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA

Statement E

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Govemnmental Funds

REVENUES:
General property taxes
Charges for sarvices
Privilege licensas and permits
Intergovarnmental revenues
Flnes and (orfeitures
Interest income
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

General government
Public safety
Health and senitation
Parks and recreations
Highways and Streets
Dabt services:
Interest and service charges
Capltal oullay: ‘
Public safety
Highways and Street
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Sale of capltal assets
Operating transfors In
Operalting transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change In Fund Balances
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING
FUND BALANCE, ENDING

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Health Total
General and Debt Capltal Govammental

Fund Sanitation Service Projact Funds
$ 564,209 200,447 - . $ 764,658
. 161,326 - . 161,328
180,173 - . - 180,173
672,632 - - 304,471 977,103
288,277 - - . 288,277
164 8 1 . 174
— 1922829 _362.007 1 04471 _2.580.300
825,788 - - . 825,788
1,279,834 - - . 1,279,034
. 247,613 - . 247,613
1,705 - - . 1,705
48,178 - . 17,600 65,676
. - 13,794 . 13,794
49,697 - - - 49,697
56,720 - - 288,18 344015
—2262020 __247813 ____ 13784 ___ 305607 _ 2820122
(339,161) 114484 (13793 (1,229 (239.729)
. 500- . . 500
160,108 - 13,784 - 173,900
— (137049 _(160,106) = - (173.909)
— 146312 _ (150.608) __13.704 2 500
(192,879) (45,122) 1 (1,224 (239,224)
—[(634983) _ 4,055 1130 : 421253
S (627863 1009964 . L13| (1229 S___102029

The Accompanying Notes are an intergral part of these Financial Statements.
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CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues

Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for govemmental activitles In the Statsment of Activities are different
because:

Capital outlays aré reported In governmental funds as expenditures, However, In the
Statement of Aclivitlas, the costs of those assets Is allocated over thelr estimated
useful lives as depreciation expensa. Thisis the amount by which depreciation exceads
‘capltal oullays tn the period.

Capltal outlays
Depreciation expense

Sale of heavy equipment Is traated as income In the governmenta funds, but as a reduction
of assets in the Statement of Net Position

Compensated absences are racognized in the Statement of Net Pasition as an increase to
Nlablitles, but not in the Fund Financial Statements.

Interest on long-term debt In the Statement of Activities differs from the amount reporting

in the governmental funds because Interes! Is récognized es an expenditure in the funds

when It is dus, and thus requites the use of current financlal resources. In the Statement

::Actlvim t:esb Emver Interest expense Is recognized as the Interest accrues, regardless
en it Is due

Other
Change in net position of governmental aclivities

The Accompanying Notes are an intergral part of these Financial Statements.
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394,613
—{104,351)

Statement F

AMOUNTS

$§  (239,229)

260,262
(12,000)

(1 ,446.)

13,764

s&




_ , Statement G-1
CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

— Budget Amounts
Variance with
Final Budgef -
Actual Posltive
Original Final Amounils (Negative)
REVENUES: ] ) o ]
Property taxes " $ 467,000 $ 574000 $ 584,209 §$ '(9,761)
Licenses and permlis ,248,000 183,000 180,173 (2,827)
Intergovernmental revenues 730,000 683,000 672,632 70,632
Fines and forfeits 252,000 284,000 286,277 2,277
Interest income - - ‘164 164
Miscellaneous Income 229000 211,000 215676 _____ 48756
TOTAL REVENUES 1,924,000 1.845.000 1,918,130 74130
-EXP&NE} w&*as i
[Generat gamrnmsnl 838,865 872,204 825,788 48,508
'%i}kc safaiy, 1,300,358 1,352,016 1,279,934 72,082
lﬁtgﬁway and ‘straets 48,947 50,891 48,176 2,716
IParks and recreation 1,730 1,709 1,705 04
[Capital cutiays | - - - 108417 __(106417D
"TOTAL EXPENDITURES] 2180000 _ 2277000 __2262020 14980
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over . s
Expenditures (2660000 _ (432000) __ (342800) ___ 89,110
Other Financing Sources (Uses): _ )
Transfers in 156,000 160,108 4,108
Proceeds from Insurance 6 000 4,000 3,699 (301)
Transfers out ' (14,000 (13784) _____ 208
Total Other Financing Sources 6 nnn 146,000 160011 4011
Net change in fund balance (280 000) (286 000) (192 878) 93 i21
Fund Balance at beginning of year: —(634,983)
Fund Balance at end of year $ !BQ;@Q) Sl____IM) $M $ gﬁ.]g]

The Accompanying Notes are an intergral part of these Financial Statements.
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Health and Sanitation

CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

REVENUES:
Taxes
Charges for services
Interest Income
Miscsllaneous
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Current: )
Health and sanitation

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Saurces:
Sale of capital asset
Operating transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources

Net change in fund balance
Fund Balance at beginning of year
Fund Balance at end of year

Bud ounts
Actual
Original Final Amounts
$ 200447 $ 190,000 $ 200,447
" 235,553 150,000 161,326
. - 6
- - _318
—436,000 _340000 __ 362,097
—401.000 _276900 __ 247613
—401,000 _276000 __247613
— 35000 __64000 __ 114484
- 1,000 500
= (160,000 _(160.106)
= ~(159.000) _(150.606)
35,000 [{95,000) (45,122)

-1.055,106 , ;11055106
$_1.090.106 1$_960,106

Statement G-2

Variance with
Final Budget-
Positive

(Negative)
$ 10,447

11,326
6

—22,007

—28.387
— 28387

—20.484

(500)

—{108)
{608)

49,878

1055108 ___- ___
$.1000084 $___40.878

The Accompanying Notes are an intergral part of these Financlal Statements.
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CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Fund
December 31, 2013

Assots

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, nst
Prepald expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent assets: }
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Customer deposits
Revenue bonds

Total restricted assets

Property, Plant and Equlpmem. at Cost
Larg
iBulidings & ;mgxmvaman{s
“Water/Sewst sys!em 1
ﬁmtamtws and squipment=
Less: acmmataiw dapreeiatzcm
“Total cap;tal agsels {net of accumutated depmdauon)

Total noncurrent assets
Totg! Assets

Ligbitities and Net Posltion
Lisbltes
Current Liabities:'
-Accounts payable
Accrued and other Labilities
Interfund payables
Compensated absences
Revenue bonds payable
Total current liabilitios

Noncurrent labflities:
‘Customer deposlts payable from rostricted assets
Compensated absences
Revenue bonds payable

Total noncurrent flabliities payable

Total Liabllities

Net Posilion
Investment in capital assets, net of related dabl
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

The Accompanying Notes &re an intergral part of these Financial Statements.
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Statement H

$ 47,440
139,401

101,833

49,182
239,004
5,641,706
1,231,063

$ 153,543

661,232 -
$ 367,057




Statement |
CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Operating Revenues:
Water sales $ 424,473
Water connection charges 26,526
Sewer fees 544513
Total Operating Revenues 995,512
Operating Expenses:
Salaries and benefits 319,211
Materials and supplies 15,694
Operating costs 463,841
Professional services 57,655
Other services and charges 110,029
Depreciation 304,095
Total operating expenses 1270525
Operating income (loss) —(275.013)
Nonoperating revenues (éxpenses);
Miscellaneous B 4,257
Interest income 15
Ad valorem tax revenues 73,350
Intergovernmental revenues . 987,926
Sale of assets (46,850)
Interest expense {35.748)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 92,950
Change'in net position (182.083)
Net position - beginning £49.120
Total net position - ending $ 367,057

The Accompanying Notes are an Intergral part of these Financlal Statements.

24




CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Statement of Cash Flows
All Proprietary Fund Types
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Cash flows from operating activifles:
Recelpts from customers and users
Intergovernmental revenues
Payments o cuppliers
Payments to employees )
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Cash flows from capital end related financing activilles:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal pald retirement of debt
Proceeds from refunding bond
Interest paid on capital debt

~ Sales of capital assets .

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related
financing activitles

Cash flows provided by (used for) investing activities:
Interest received
Miscellaneous revenue
Other Investing activities
Net cash provided by investing aclivities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Recondliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating ectivities:
Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustment to reconclle operating Income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreclation expense

(Increase) decrease
Accounts receivable, net
Intergovernmental recelvable

Increase (decrease)
‘Accounts payable
Accrued and other liabllities
Interest payable
Customer deposits
Due to other tunds
Compensated absences

Net cash provided by operating activities

The Accompanying Notes are an intergral part of these Financial Statements.
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Statement J

$ 994,028
171,276
(853,500)

— (316.289)
—(103585)
(04,857)
(1,244,771)
1,345,000

— (356,740
(30,476)
(60,952

16
4,257

—207,181
—211.453

46,018
—160.958
$____207.874

$___(27501

304,005

(684)
(2,969)

35,837
(14,727)
(46,017

" 1,710

(108,839)

$ {103.685)




CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Notés to the Financlal Statements
Dgcamber 31, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements of the City of Grambling, Louisiana have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America (GAAP) as applied
to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

A‘

REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Grambling was founded in 1959 under the provislons of the "Lawrason Act” (Loulstana
Revised Statutes (R.S.)33:321-481) of the constitution of the State of Louisiana. The City Is
located in the parish of Lincoln and has a population of approximately 4,693. The City Is governed
by the mayor and five-member council. The mayor and council members serve four-year terms
which expire on December 31, 2014,

As the governing authorlty of the City, for reporting purposes, the City of Grambling is consldered
a separate financial reporting entity. The financial reporting entity consist of (a) the primary
government (the City), (b) organizations for which the primary government is financially
accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship
with the primary govemment are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete.

Govemnmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 established criteria for
determining which component units should be considered part of the City of Grambling for
financial reporting purposes. The basic criterion for including a potential component unit within the
reporting entity is financlal accountabillty. The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in
determining financial accountability. This criterion includes:
1. Appointing a voting majority of an organization's body, and
a. The ability of the municlpality to impose its will on that organization and/or
b. The potential for the organization to provide specific financiat benefits to
or impose specific financlal burdens on the Clty.
2. Organizatlions for which the Clty does not appoint a voting majority but are fiscally
dependent on the City.
3. Organlzations for which the reporting entity financial statements would be misleading
if data of the organization were not included because of the nature or significance of
the relationship.

As required by generally accepted accounting princlples, these financiat statements present the
City of Grambling (the primary government). The City of Grambling has no component units.

FUND ACCOUNTING

The City uses funds to report on its financial position and the results of its operations. A fund is a
separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts that comprises it assets, liabilities,
fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate
legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions relating to certain
government functions or aclivities.
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CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Notes to the Financlal Statements
December-31, 2013

Funds are classified into two categories; governmental and proprietary. Each category, in tum, Is
divided into separate "fund types.” Govemmental funds are used to account for a govemment's
general aclivities, where the focus of attention is on the providing of services to the public as
opposed to proprietary funds where the focus of attention is on recovering the cost of providing
services to the public or other agencies through service charges of user fees.

The City's current operations require the use of governmental and proprietary fund types
described as foliows:

Governmental Funds

General Fund - is the general operating fund of the City. It accounts for ali financial resources,
except those required to be accounted for in other funds.

Health and Sanitation Fund - Is used to account for the expenses in providing services for heaith
care and garbage collection services.

Debt Sarvice Fund - Is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment
of, long-term debt princlp?al, Interest, and related costs.

Capital Project Fund -'Is used to account for financlal resources received and used for the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of capital facllities not reported in the other

governmental funds.

Proprietary Fund

Maintenance enterprise fund - accounts for the operations of the Clty's sewer and water systems.
The operations are financed and operated In a manner similar to a private business enterprise,
where the Intent of the governing body is that the cost (expenses, including depreclation) of
providing services on & continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user

charges.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS) The Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities displays information about the reporting government as a whole. The
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities was prepared using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basls of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains,
losses, assets, and liabilittes resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are
recognized when the exchange takes place. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, liabilities
and deferred inflows/outflows of resources resulting from nonexchange transactions are
recognized In accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 33 "Accounting and
Financtal Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions.”
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CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Notes to the Financlal Statements
December 31, 2013

Program mvenues - Program revenues Include charges to customers or apphcanls who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function
or segment and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Allocation of indirect expenses - The City reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement
of Activitles. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identiflable with a function. Depreciation
expense Is specifically identified by function and Is included In the direct expenses of each
function. Interest on long-term debt Is considered an indirect. expense and is reported separately
on the Statement of Activities for govemmental activities and is included in Utility Enterprise for
business-type activities.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FFS)

Governmental Funds - The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is
determined by its measurement focus. Governmental fund types use the flow of current financlal
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified
accrual basis of accounting revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (l.e., when they
are "measurable and available”). "Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be
determined and "available™ means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter
to pay liabilities of the current period. The government considers all revenues avallable if they are
collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund llabliity
Is Incurred, except for unmatured principal and interest on long-term debt which is recognized
when due. Compensated absences and claims and judgments are reported In a governmental
fund only If the claims are due and payable.

With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on
the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases and decreases in net
current assets. The governmental funds use the following practices in recording revenues and

expenditures:

Revenues Ad valorem taxes are recorded in the year the taxes are due and payable. Ad
valorem taxes are assessed on-a calendar-year basls and attach as an enforceable lien
and become due and payable on the date the tax rolls are filed with the recorder of
mortgages. Loulsiana Revised Statute 47:1894 requires that the tax roll be filed on or
before November 16 of each year. Ad valorem taxes become delinquent if not paid by
December 31. The taxes are normally collected in December, January and February of
the current year.

Franchise taxes and intergovernmental revenues are recorded when the City s entitled to
the funds.

Interest income on time deposits is recorded when the interest has been eamed and the
amount is determinable.
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CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

Substantially all other revenues are recorded when theéy are received by the City.

Based on the above criteria, ad valorem taxes, franchise taxes and intergovernmental
revenues have been treated as susceptible to accrual.

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting
when the related fund liabliity is Incurred.

Other Financing Source (Use) Transfers between funds that are not expected to be
repaid are accounted for as other financing sources and are recognized when the
underlying event occurs.

Proprietary Funds - Proprietary funds are accounted for on the fiow of economic resources
measurement focus and use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred. With this
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are
included on the balance sheet The City Is currently in compiiance with GASB Statement No.62.

Operating revenues and expenses - Proprietary funds distingulsh operating revenues
and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expensss generally
result from providing services In connection with the fund's principa! ongoing operations.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses.

BUDGET PRACTICES

A preliminary budget for the ensuing year Is prepared in November. The proposed budget is
reviewed by the mayor and the City Council and made available to the public. During the
December meeting of the City Council, the City holds a public hearing on the proposed budget in
order to receive comments from citizens. Changes are made to the proposed budget based on
the public hearing and the desires of the City Councll as a whole. The budgets are then adopted
during the December meeting, and notice published in the official journal. During the year, the City
Council receives monthly budget comparison statements which are used as a tool to control the
operations of the Clty. Necessary budget amendments are presented to the Council when actual
operations are differing materially from those anticipated in the original budget. The Council in
regular session reviews the proposed amendments, makes necessary changes, and formally
adopts the amendments. The adoption of amendments is included in the City's minutes published
in the official joumal. The budget Is established and controlled by the mayor and council members
at the fund level of expenditure. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end and must be
reappropriated for the following year to be expended. All changes in the budget must be approved
by the mayor and the council members. The City does not use encumbrance accounting In its
accounting system.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Under state law, the City may deposit funds within a fiscat agent bank organized under the laws of
the State of Louisiana, the laws of-any other state In the union, or the laws of the United States of
America. The City may invest in certificates and time deposits of state banks organized under
Louisiana laws and national banks having principat offices in Louisiana. For purposes of the.
statement of cash flows, cash equivalents include all highly liquid Investments with a maturity date
of three months or less when purchased.
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F. INVESTMENTS

Investments are limited by R.S. 33:2955 and the City's investment policy. If the original maturities
of investments exceed 80 days they are classified as investments; however, if the original
maturities are 90 days or less, they are classified as cash equivalents.

The investments are reflected at fair value except for the following which are required/permitted
as per GASB Statement No. 31:

1. Investments in ponparticipating interest-eaming contracts, such as nonnegotiable
certificates of deposit with redemption terms that do not consider market rates, are
reported using a cost-based measure.

2. The City reports at amortized cost money market investments and participating interest-
earning investment contracts that have a remaining maturity at time of purchase of one
year or less.

Definitions:
Interest-eaming investment contracts-include time deposits with financial institutions (such as
certificates of deposit), repurchase agreements, an guaranteed investment contracts.

Money market investments are short-term, highly liquid debt instruments that include U.S.
Treasury obligations.

The City participates in the Loulslana Asset Management Pool, Inc., (LAMP) which Is an external
investment pool that Is not SEC - registered. Because the LAMP is an arrangement sponsored by a type
of governmental entity, it Is exempt by statute from regulation by the SEC.

LAMP Is administered by LAMP, Inc., a non-profit corporation organized under the. laws of the State of
Louisiana. Only local government entities having contracted to participate in LAMP have an investment
interest in its pool of assets. The primary objective of LAMP is to provide a safe environment for the
ptacement of public funds in short-term, high quality investments. The LAMP portfolio includes only
securities and other obligations in which local governments in Louisiana are ‘authorized to invest in

accordance with LA-R.S. 33:2855.
LAMP (s a 2a7-like investment pool. The following facts are relevant for 2a7-like investment pools:
) Credit risk: LAMP [s rated AAA by Standard & Poor’s.

* Custodial credit risk. Lamp participants' investments in the pool are evidenced by
shares of the pool. Investments in pools should be disclosed, but not categorized
because they are not evidenced by securitles that exist in physical or book-entry
form. The public entity’s investment is with the pool, not the securities that make up
the pool; therefore, no disclosure is required.

. Concentration of credit risk: Pooled invéstments are excluded from the 5§ percent
disclosure requirement.

30




CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

* Interest rate risk. LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its particlpants
immediate access to thelr account balances. LAMP prepares its' own Interest rate
risk disclosure using the welghted average maturity (WAM) method. The WAM of
LAMP assets Is restricted to not more than 60 days, and consists of no securities
with a maturity In excess of 397 days. The WAM for LAMP's total Investments as 76

as of December 31, 2013.

¢ Foreign currency risk. Not applicable to 2a7-like pools.

The Investments in LAMP are stated at fair value based on quoted market rates. The fair value Is
determined on a weekly basls by LAMP and the value of the position in the extemal investment pool is
the same as the net asset value of the pool shares.

LAMP, Inc. is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state treasurer and the board of directors. LAMP is
not registered with the SEC as an Investment company

LAMP Issues financial reports. These financlal reports can be obtained by writing: LAMP, Inc. 228 St
Charles Ave., Sulte 1123, New Orleans, LA 70130.

G.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are recorded at either historical cost or estimated historical cost and depreciated
over thelr estimated useful lives (excluding salvage value). Donated capitat assets are recorded at
their estimated fair value at the date of donation. The City has a caplitallzation threshold of $1,000.
Estimated useful life is management's estimated of how long the asset is expected to meet
service demands. Straight line depreciation is used for governmental fund-type based on the
following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 40 years
Concrete block building 20 years
Equipment 8 years
Vehicles 5 years
Sewer system and lines 20 years
Water system and lines 20 years

The capital assets used in the proprietary fund-type operations are included on the statement of
net position of the fund. Depreclation of all exhaustible fixed assets used by the proprietary fund
type operations are charged as an expense against operations. Depreciation is computed using
the straight-line method over estimated lives of 20 years for the plant, distribution system, and
collection system, 5 to 8 years for fumniture and equipment.

LONG-TERM DEBT

Long—terrh obligations, such as bonded debt and bank loans are recognized as liabilities of a
govemmental fund only when duse.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES -

Full ime employees are allowed five days of annual leave in the first two years of employment.
After the first two years, employees are ellgible for ten annual leave days which can accumulate to
20 days. Employees earn ten days of sick leave each year which is not paid upon retirement or
termination. The City of Grambling's recognition -and measurement criteria for compensated
absences follow;
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GASB State No.16 provides that vacation leave and other compensated absences with similar
characteristics should be accrued as a liabllity as the benefits are eamed by the employees if both
of the following conditlons are met:

a. . The employees' rights to receive compensation are attributable to services
already rendered.
b. It Is probable that the employer will compensate the employees for the

benefits through pald time off or some other means, such as cash
payments at termination or retirement.

The cost of leave privileges; computed in accordance with GSAB Codification Section C60, Is
recognized as current-year expenditure in the govemmental funds when leave is actually taken or
when employees are pald for accrued leave upon resignation or termination.

RESTRICTED ASSETS

"Certaln grants recelved by the City contained restrictions on spending for specific purposes. In the

Maintenance Enterprise Fund, cash and investments are restricted for debt service payments,
maintenance on the sewer system, and customer deposits payable.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risk of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; and injuries to employees. To handle such risk of loss, the City
maintains commerclal insurance policies covering its automobiles, professional liabllity, general
liability, and surety bond coverage. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage
during the year ended December 31, 2013.

RESTRICTED NET POSITION

For the government-wide statement of net position, net position is reported as restricted when
constraints placed on net position use are either: '

Externally imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants) grantors, contributors, or laws
or regulations of other governments;

Imposed by law through constitutional provislons or enabling legislation. All restricted net
position reported on Statement A are the result of enabling legislation.

FUND BALANCES OF FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GASB 54 requlres the fund balance amounts to be reported within the fund balance categories
as follows:

Non-spendable - Fund balance that is not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to
be maintained intact. This category includes items that are not easily converted to cash such as
inventorles and prepald items.
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Restricted - Fund balance that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by
constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling fegistation.

Commilted - Fund balance that can only be used for specific purposes determined by the City’s
highest level of decision making authority. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other
purpose unless the Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of
action It employed to previously commit the funds. Committed fund balance is the result of either
a policy of the City or motions were passed at a City meeting committing the funds. The motions
passed are usually the result of budget revisions.

Assigned - Fund balance that is constrained by the City's intent to be used for speclfic purposes,
but are neither restricted nor committed. Intent should be expressed by the Council.

‘Unassigned - Fund balance that Is the residual classification for the general fund.

The City reduces committed amounts, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned
amounts when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those
unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used. The City considers restricted amounts to
have been spent when an expenditure has incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balance Is available.

SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for
services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as Interfund
receivable/payables on the balance sheet. Short-term intefund loans are also classified as
interfund receivables/payables.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and ligbilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and llabillties at the date of the financla! statement and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

ELIMINATION AND RECLASSIFICATIONS

In the process of aggregating data for the statement of net position and the statement of activities,
some amounts reported as Interfund activity end balances in the funds were eliminated or

_reclassified. Interfund receivables and payables were ellminated to minimize the “grossing up”

effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental activities column.
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Q. SALESTAX

Sales taxes are collected by the Lincoln Parish Sales and Use Tax Commission and by the
Lincoln Parish Police Jury. The City’s sales tax percentage is two percent. The revenue from the
Lincoln Parish Sales and Use Tax commisslon is for general operating expenses of the City. The
police Jury Tax Revenue is dedicated to Health and Sanitation.

R. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

The statement of financial position will often report a separate section for deferred outflows and
(or) deferred inflows of financial resources. Deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future perlod(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Deferred Inflows of resources, represents
an acquisition of net position that applies to future period(s)and so will not be recognized as an
Inﬂow of resources until that time.

The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from one source: property taxes. This
amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources In the period that the amount

becomes available.

NOTE 2 - BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

Health &
rSources/inflows of Fesources: General Sanitation
rAc&ua! amounts (budgetary, basls) “available lor appropriation® from the budgetary

wmpm taon schedule - Statement;G $ 1918130 §$ 362,097
The;furd balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary resource but Is not a
cusrarﬁayﬁxar revenue for financial reporting purposes. (634,983) 1,055,108
Trmsfars in frOH BIhEF flinds dre Inflows of budgetary resources but are not
rwwnues for financial rapmﬁﬁg purposes. (160,108) -
:Sales of capital assets are | infidws for budgetary resources but are not revenues for
Lﬁnaﬁma% reporting purposss: - (500)
lf»’m&eed& from insurance:are inflows for budgetary resources but are not revenues
fornfinancial reporting purposes. (3.699) =
l’:tal revenuss as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures and
anges $._1.120.342 $.1.416.703
In fund balances - governmental funds-Statement E
[ i foutfiows
rﬂ&ciuai ammmia (buag&mw ha&is},“charges to appropriations® from the _
buﬁge&wy comparison soheduls - Statement G $ 2262020 $ 247613
“Transfars to athenﬁmda'are ‘outiibws of budgetary resources but are not
-gxpenditurss f05financlal reporting purposes — {13799 _(160.108)
“Total expenditurés as reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
#ifid Changes in Fund Balances - Govemmental Funds - Statement E $_22482268 §$__ 87,507
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NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
At December 31, 2013, the Clty had the following investments:

_ Carrying Amount
‘Type of Investment Fair Value:
Investments not subject to categorization:
External investment pool (LAMP)

1541
Total investment $____1541

Total investments -are $1,641 in which $1,011 is reported on Statement C and $530 Is included in
restricted assets on Statement H.

Interest Rate Risk: The Clty's policy does not address Interest rate risk.
Cradit Risk: The Clty's policy does not address credit rate risk.

Custodial Credit-Deposits: At year end, the City's carrying amouiit of deposits was $205,824 (Statement
C-Cash and cash equivalents of $56,451 Statement H - cash and cash equivalents of $47,440 and
restricted assets cash of $101,933 on Statement H). In the case of deposits, this is the risk:that in the
avent of a.bank failure, the City's deposits may not be retumed to it. As of December 31, 2013, the City's
bank balance was $464,922 which was covered by federal depository insurance.

NOTE 4 - LEVIED TAXES

The City levies properly taxes on real and business property located within the City's boundaries.
‘Property taxes are levied by the City on property values assessed by the Lincoin Parish Tax Assessor
and approved by the State of Loulslana Tex Commission. The Lincoln Parish Tax Assessor prepares tax
statements for the City.

The following Is a summiary of authorized and levied property taxes:

Authorized Levied Expiration
Category Millage Millage Date
Public streets : 6.50 5.51 2019
Water system 5.00 4.24 2016
Police department 5.50 4.66 2019
Public Improvement 11.20 9.50 2019
Fire department ‘ 20.80 17.62 2019
General Alimony Constitutional 7.00 6.00 Statutory
Total Levy —26.00 47.53
Property Tax Calendar .

Lien Date 12/3113

Levy Date 10/3113

Due Date 12/31113

Collection Dates November 1 through June 30
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NOTE § - RECEIVABLES
The following Is a summary of recelvables at December 31, 2013:

Health &
General Sanitation Capital Proprietary

. Class of Recelvable Fund Fund Projects Fund Total
Waxes:

\Propaty taxes $ 197498 $ - $ - $ 21,840 $ 219,338

Sales and use; . 48,087 18,000 - - 62,087
Intergovernmental revenue:

(Grants 30,000 - 4,686 2,969 37,635

Charges for services - 22,458 - 135,896 - 158,354

[Eranchise feés) 67468 - - - ___67.468

IGross,Receivables) —341053 __38458 ___4,666 __160705 __544.882

Less Aliowance for uncollectibles

— - . (4683 ___- _ __(24273) _ (28956)
$—341.053 $__33775 $_4666 $__136432 $_»515.926

NOTE 6 - INTERFUND ASSETS/LIABILITIES (FFS LEVEL ONLY)

individual balances due from/to other funds at December 31, 2013 are as folliows:

Receivable Fund Amount Payable Fund Amount

General $ 99,372 Proprietary $ 99,372
Health and Sanitation 841,927 General 841,827
Health and Sanitation . 113,224 Proprietary 113.224
Total $___1,054,523 . Total $_1054,523

The Heailth and Sanitation receivable from the General Fund is the resuit of a cash shortage in the
General fund. The other receivables are the result of bills being paid by one fund for another. The Health
and Sanitation receivable is not éxpected to be repaid within a year.

Transfers during the year ended December 31, 2013 were as follows:

Transfer From  Transfer to
Other Funds Other Funds

General Fund 160,106 13,794
Health and Sanltation Fund - 160,108
Debt Service Fund 13,794 -

Total $____ 173900 § 173,900

The transfer to debt service from the general fund was to make a debt service payment because the
balance in the debt service fund had been transferred to the general fund.
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NOTE 7 - ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES
The payables at December 31, 2013 are as follows:
General Healthand  Proprietary

Payable category Fund Sanitation Fund Total
Wages payable $ 43192 $ 1631 § 7,554 $ 62377
Other payables 6,678 145 - 6,823
Accrued insurance 65136 ___ 2856 __17300 __85300
Total $___115006 $__4.631 $_24863 $_144.500

NOTE 8 - CAPITAL ASSETS

The followlng-presénts the changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2013:

Beginning Ending
Balance. Additions  Deletions Balance
l@wammmi‘a% az;t;wt%@s
INandeprwable assets:!
[tand  F. $ 217902 $ - $ - $ 217,002
(Constructioffprogress — 16600 344016 331443 __ 20973
- Total nondepreciable assets 234402 _344916 _ 331443 _247.875
l%pf"&ciahia A&aata
: Emtc%mg and sm;:xrovaments 1,869,005 - - 1,869,005
-Furniture and equipment’ 1,308,045 49,697 12,000 1,345,742
infmatmﬁ:%ura - ~313943 __ - = _313943
ITotal depreciable assets 3177080 _363640 __12,000 3,528,680
[L@s*.rs Bocumulated ﬁepmmatmn
iBuildings and ;mpmvements 373,102 48,001 - 421,103
-?jumlﬁum andﬁqmpm&nt 1,144,973 50,391 12,000 1,183,364
-mfrastm{:wre - 69%9 __ - = ___b959
Totai dag:{récié&e'ca;alts! assets: 1518075 _104351 __12000 1610426
Govemmental activities capital assets, net $_1.893.377 $_604.205 $_331443 $2.166.139

Depreciation expense for 2013 was charged to governmental activities as follows:

General $ 40,451
Public safety 40,730
Health and sanitation 16,864
Highways and streets 5 859
Culture and recreation

Total 7
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A summary of plant and equipment changes In the maintenance enterprise fund for 2013 are as follows:

Beginning . Ending
__Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Business-type activities:
Nondepreciable assets:
.Lanci ] $___49182 $ - $ o $ 49,182
Ii‘.)epreciab&e‘ﬂssst&
[Building and tm@mvemems. 239,004 - - 239,004
rSewage p%anir 3,701,162 11,150 56,000 3,656,312
Water 8}!&9&1' 1,001,587 83,807 - 1,885,394
Waterfseww equipment 1,194,997 - - 1,194,997
'Vehuzl&m 37.068 - 1,000 ___36,086
wTotal Uepfeciable)assets: 1073818 __ 94957 __57.000 _Z111.773
Le&s accurmulated iieprematsen
« Buildings and amg;rovamems 219,921 5,620 - 225,550
lﬁewagfa plant™™ 2,321,789 188,927 4687 2,508,049
“Water sysfem' 1,241,180 98,574 - 1,338,754
;Waterisewer €quipment. 1,181,029 4,293 - 1,185,322
'Vehlmies- 9,007 6672 _____ 583 15.186
5.271.861

. s,{mtayaecumulated{depreclaﬂon 4973016 __304,005
‘[N&t depreciable capital'assets

21006800 __(200138) _ 561760 _1.830,912
IBusiness:type activities capitallassets, net  $,2.149.982 $_(200.138) $___ 51750 $ 1,880,094

NOTE 8 - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLAN

L“i‘he*i';xt esﬁaﬁk&h@&i a Simpte IRA plan to be effective October 4, 2002. All city employees are eligible to

mer& icipate In the p%&n 5 The plan is defined contribution plan administered by Morgan Keegan.& Co,, Inc.

[Under the plan, the City’ famch&s'each employee's salary reduction for contributions to the plan up to 6%
Jfor that calendar year. The fmda'are Immediately vested when pald into the plan. The plan Is based on the
'H’%g Code and must comply wzth‘ all IRS Code requirements. The City of Grambling's contributions to the

Lsystem  forithe,year, enz:fmgﬁ@mmmr. 31, 2013 were $10,355 and employees contributed $10,355.
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NOTE 10 - CHANGES IN LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Governmental Activities

The following is a summary of long-term obligation transactions for the year ended December 31, 2013

Beginning ) " Ending Dus Within

Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Compensated Absences $ 43,425 32,382 20936 § 54671 $ 39,258
Certificate of Indebtness .—.302,768 - - __ 302768 _ 1487985
Total $_346193 32382 ___2083¢ §_ 397699 §___186.053

Compensated absences are paid from governmental Funds (General Fund and Health and Sanitation).
Bonded debt payable at December 31, 2013 Is comprised of the following individual issues:

$302,768 - Certificate of Indebtedness, Serles 2005 was amended during 2013 - The

principal Is due in two (2) annual installments beginning June 30, 2014 and due each

year through 2015, with an interest rate of 2:30%.: The funds were used for a new fire

station and recreation center renovations. Debt retirement payments are made from $____302,768
the Debt Service Fund.

As shown on Statement C, $1,131 Is avallable in the Debt Service Fund to service the bonded debt on the
Certificate of Indebtedness, Serles 2005. The annual requirements to amortize all outstanding bonded
deht at December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Debt Service Fund:
Year Princlpal Interest - Total
2014 $ 148,795 7447 $ 156,242
2015 153973 45.1.3_ —157.488
Total $_302768 $__10860 $_313728
.Business Activitles

The following is a summary of long-term obligation transactions for the year ended December 31, 2013

Beginning _ Ending Dus Within

Balancs - Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Compensated Absencos $ 7,492 5,268 2347 § 10413 $ 9,572
Capilal leases . 57,132 - 33,838 ‘23,286 23,296
Bonds Payable ~1.210835 __1345000 12109035 _1345000 ___ 45000
Total $-1.276559 _ 1350268 _1.247,118 $_1376.709 §___J7888




CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

Bonded debt payable at December 31, 2013 is comprised of the following individual issues:

$1,345,000 - Utilitlies revenue refunding bonds, Series 2013 - the remaining

principal is due in annual Instaliments through 2033 with an interest rate of

4.25%. The funds were used for the water system. Debt retirement payments )

are made from the Malntenance Enterprise Fund. $.1,345.000

Total | “ $,1,345.000

Of the restricted cash and Investments on Statement H, $160,434 is restricted for debt service on the
bonded debt. The annual requirement to amortize all outstanding bonded debt at December 31; 2013 are
as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2014 $ 45,000 $ 28,581 $ 73,581
2015 45,000 27,625 72,625
2016 50,000 26,669 76,669
2017 50,000 25,713 75,713
2018 50,000 24,650 74,650
2019-2023 295,000 105,931 400,931
2024-2028 365,000 71,825 436,826
2029-2033 —445.000 —28325 — 474,325
Total $.1.345.000 P 340,319 ¥ 665,919

The City records items under capital leases as an asset and an obligation in the accompanying fund
financial statements. Capital lease payments are made from the maintenance enterprise fund.

At December 31, 2013, The City had the following assets under capltal lease:
Contract Lease Interest Accumulated  Net Book

Asset Date Term Rate Cost Depreciation Value
Aerators  4/1/2012 24 months 5% $ 89486 $ 12680 $ 76816

The capital lease for the aerators totals $87,148. In addition, the City paid initial costs of $850 for

startup/warranty certification and $1,500 for frelght, which was added to the lease amount resulting in a
capitalized cost of $89,496.
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The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital leases, together with the
present value of the net minimum lease payments, as of December 31, 2013:

Fiscal Year Maintenance.
2014 $ 24,022
Total lease payments 24022

Less amounts representing interest . 126
Present vaiué of net minimum lease payments 3 23,206

NOTE 11 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation and Clalms

At Decemberi31,12013 there are several lawsuits ouistandmg It is the opinion of legal counsel that the
witimate resolution of these. {awsuits would not materially affect the financial statements, except for the one
|settlad in March 2013:with: an engineering firm. In 2006, a contract related to the Mt: Olive Community
'%wer Project was executed. The City decided not to proceed due to the funding obligations. In
.Samembar 2012, thelengmeeﬁng firm made a demand for payment. in March 2013, a settlement was
lmmhed with the fzrml to payithem $98,180 over 24 months. An accrual was recorded In the Enterprise
Ii‘“‘und as of December 31, 2012'to reflect the $96,180 liability ‘that the City incurred as result of this
isettiement. The.outstanding,balance remaining on the settlement as of December 31, 2013 is $17,972.

Grant Disallowances

The. Clty participates In a number of state and federally assisted grant programs. The programs are
subject to compliance audits under the single audit approach. Such audits could lead to requests for
reimbursement by the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants. City
Management belleves that the amount of disallawances, if any, which may arise from future.audits will not
be material.

Construction in Progress
The City has under construction the following projects:

Estimated Estimated

Cost of Balance o . Balance Cost io
Project Description: Project 01/01/13 Additions Delstions 123113 Complete
West College Avenue Rehab s 274,723 16,500 253,2z; 274 723 - $ -
Safe Route to Schools —_— ~28.973 —L027
Total ' 3.% 16,500 .-ZLJ-%. _.ZAHL% 28873  $ L1927

At December.31, 2013, the construction contractor estimate that the project will be completed by May
2014, .
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NOTE 12 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Excess of Appropriations Over -Expenditures in Individual Funds - The following Individual funds had
actual expendltures under budgeted expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2013:

Fund Budget Actual Variance
General $ 2277,000 $ 2,262,020 $ 14,980
Health and Sanitation 276,000 247,613 28,387

NOTE 13 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

During the month of June 2014, the City finalized an agreement with a major hotel chain to build a hotel in
Grambling. This projeet Is expected to bring In significant new revenue.

Subsequent events have been evaluated through June 13, 2014, which represents the date the financlal
report was avallable to be issued. Subsequent events after that date have not been evaluated.

NOTE 14 - GOING CONCERN

"Fha‘Qﬁy’hasfssxffarearrezmmng*lassas from-gperationstandihas alfundibalance deficlency in the general
nfund that raises substantial doubt about its ability to continué as'a gmng;camem- .The General Fund has a
'ggfﬁﬁmi fund balance at the end of the fiscal year of $827 862, During the.year the City reduced salaries by
15% across the board. The City will continue to look at all exp@mifmreu line items in the financial's to
iévaluate ways to decrease expenditures for the remainder of the 2014 caiaﬁdar,year Capital outiay for the
2&’3& fiscal year will be greatly reduced. The City is exploring the possrmﬁty of moving the fees for garbage
fmﬁwtm to the general fund and their attorney will research the mgmty, of this. There is a new 34 housing
Ftinit being built in the city whichiwill increase prﬁpmyiafsd.@aias taxiasiwell as sewer and water revenue.
Allof these. activitm&ar&expactedlm increase,the, mvenualt:saﬁe for the City.

Additionally, the City reviewed their water and sewer rates and made increases to these rates which went
Into effect November of 2013.
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CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Notes to the Financlal Statements
December 31, 2013

NOTE 16 - NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
In fiscal year 2012, the City implemented the following GASB Statements:

In April 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 66, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing
and Related Insurance Issuses. This Statement amends Statement No. 10 by removing the provision that
limits fund-based reporting of a state and local government's risk financing activities to the general fund
and the Internal service fund type. As a result, governments would base thelr decisions about
govemmental fund type usage for risk financing activities on the definitions in Statement No. 54,
Fund Balance Reporting and Govermmental Fund Type Definitions.

Although these Statements had no cument effect on the flnanclal statements as a result of
implementation, the Statements did change the presentation of the City's financlals, which consisted of the
net assets belng classified as net position.

The City will Adopt the followlr;g new accounting pronouncements in future years:

In June 2012, GASB Issued Statement No. 68: The objective of this Statement Is to improve financlal
reporting by state and local governmenta) pension plans. This Statement results from a comprehensive
review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with
regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountabllity and interperiod
equity, and creating additional transparency. This Statement replaces the requirements of Statement No.
25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution
Pians, and No. 50 Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pension plans that are administered through
trusts or equivalent arrangements (hereafter jointly referred to as trusts) that meet certaln criteria. The
requirements of Statements 25 and 50 remain appilcable to pension plans that are not administered
through trusts covered by the scope of this Statement and to defined contribution plans that provide
postemployment benefits other than pensions. This Statement [s effective for financlal statements for
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2013,

The impact of this pronouncement on the City's financial statements has not been determined.

NOTE 16 - ON-BEHALF SUPPLEMENTAL PAY

Certain employees meeling statutory qualifications In the fire and police departments receive
supplemental pay directly from the State of Louisiana: This supplemental pay in the amount of $94,033 is
recognized as intergovemmental revenue and public safety expenditures.

NOTE 17 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets,
errors and omissions, and automaobile liability for which the City carries commercial Insurance. The City
has a $5,000 deductible for its commercial property insurance coverage, $500 for automoblle Insurance,
$500 for fidelity bond, and no deductible for the other policies. Settled clalms resuiting from these risks
have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
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CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA

Proprietary Fund Type - Maintenance Enterprise Fund

Comparative Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2013 and 2012

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $24,273 and $27,708

Prepald expenses
Total Current Assets

Noncumrent assets: _
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Customer deposits
Investments

Totel restrictad assets

Property, Plant and Equipment, at Cost
Land
Buildings
infrastructure
Automotive and equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

Tolal Assets

Liabllities
Current Liabllittes:
Accounts payable
Accrued and other liabilities
Interest payable
Interfund payables
Compensated absences
Revenue bonds payable
Totaf current fiabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Customer deposits payable from restricted assets
Compensated absences
Revenue bonds payable

Total noncurrent {labilities payable

Total Liabllitles

Net Position _
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for debt service

Unrestricted
Total Net Posttion
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2013 2012
Maintenance Maintenance
Fund Fund
$ 47,440 $ 84,271

139,401 135,848
1,484 _1.484
—188320 ____ 221,603
101,033 78,857
— 58501 ________ 560
180434 77,217
49,182 49,182
239,004 239,004
5,641,708 6,797,747
1,231,083 37,0686
—{0.271.8681 __(4.973.01D
—1.860004 __ 2149.882
$—2230853 ¢_._ 2448007
$ 153543 $ 117,708
24,863 32,703
- 48,017
212,608 321,435
8,572 8,887
— 00208 ___ 145,140
—408870 ____669,888
101,085 99,375
841 604
—1.300000 __ 1120815
—1401926 __ 1,220,794
—1.870.786 __1.890.662
1,889,004 881,914
58,501 -
—{1,580638) ___(332.794)




CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Proprietary Fund Type - Malntenance Enterprise Fund
Proposed Budget - 2014
For Year Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Operating Revenues:
Water sales
Sewerfeas
Other revenues

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:;
Water department
Sewer department

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses),

Miscsllaneous

Ad valorem tax revenues

Intergovernemental revenues
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
" Net income Before Operating Transfers
Operating Transfers In

Change in net position

Net position - beginning
Net position - ending

Schedule 2

$ 418,000
501,000

—3.000
——$22,000

745,931
——451,183
1,203.114
—{281.119)
1,000
73,000

298,000
—172.000

(108,114)

—{100.114)

— 367,097
$—250.943




: Schedule 3
CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA .
Schedute of Compensation Pald Council Members
As of December 31, 2013

The schedule of per diem :paid council members is presented in compliance with House Concurrent
Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Section of the Louisiana Legislature. Compensation of council members is
included in legislative expenditures of the General Fund.

: Compensation
Board Member Term Expiration Paid

Birdex Copeland 12/31/2014 $ 8,295
Yanise Days 12/31/2014 ‘ 8,265
Cathy Holmes - 12/31!2014 0,345
Cullen Jackson 12/31/2014 8 205
Roy Jackson 12/31/2014

“Total $_ g,ggg
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Schedute 4

CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Schedule of insurance Coverage
As of December 31,2013

Type of Name of Policy Amount of " Explration
‘Coverage Insurer Number Coverage Deductible Date
Commercial Underwriters of Bullding:
property * Lloyd of London APPUCI101805 $2,198,000 $ 2,500 7/30/2013
Personal Property:
$540,000 ) 2,500 7/30/2013
Agency Based on
. Management Individual
Automobile Corporation 5CAB938 Vehicle 500 3/13/2013
Traveler's 103093269 $15,000 NONE
Casualty 104436852 5,000 500
Fidelity Bond 103003272 10,000 NONE 2/11/2014
Agents: Agency Management Corporation Community Financlél Insurance Center, LLC
P, O. Box 15989 - P. O. Drawer 2010
Baton Rouge, LA 70885 Monroe, LA 712-2010
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) o Schedule §
CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Schedule of Breakdown of Utility Customers
For Year Ended December 31, 2013

Average
Number of
Categom" Customers
Commercial : 131
Resldential 1.047
Totat Customers =m
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CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Schedule of Water and Sewer Rates
As of and For Year Ended December 31, 2013

50

Water rates Sewer rates
Gallon Rosidential Reslidentlal
1,000 $15.00 $15.00
2,000 15.00 15.00
3,000 17.50 17.50
4,000 20.00 20.00
5,000 22.50 22.50
6,000 26.00 25.00
7.000 27.60 27.50
8,000 30.00 30.00
9,000 32.60 32.50
10,000 35.00 35.00
11,000 37.50 37.50
12,000 40.00 40.00
13,000 42.50 42.50
14,000 45.00 45.00
15,000 47.50 47.50
16,000 60.00 §0.00
17,000 -52.50 62.50
18,000 65.00 55.00
19,000 57.60 57.50
20,000 '60.00 60.00
21,000 62.50 62.50
22,000 85.00 65.00
23,000 87.50 67.50
24,000 70.00 70.00
25,000 72.60 72.60
Water rates -Sewer rates
Gallon Commercial Commerclal
1,000 $24.00 $24.00
2,000 24.00 24.00
3,000 26.00 26.00
4,000 28.00 28.00
5,000 30.00 30.00
6,000 32.00 32.00
7,000 34.00 34.00
8,000 38.00 36.00
9,000 38.00 38.00
10,000 40.00 40.00
11,000 42.00 42.00
12,000 44.00 44.00
13,000 46.00 46.00
14,000 48.00 48.00
15,000 60.00 50.00
16,000 62.00 62.00
17,000 54.00 64.00
18,000 §6.00 66.00
19,000 58.00 58.00
20,000 80.00 60.00
21,000 62.00 62.00
- 22,000 64.00 64.00.
23,000 66.00 66.00
24,000 68.00 68.00 -
25,000 70.00 70.00

Schedule 6




BANKS, FINLEY,
WHITE & CO.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANGIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Edward Jones, .
and Members of the City Council

City of Grambling

Grambling, Loulslana

We have audited, In accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financlal audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the City of Grambling, (the City) as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June

22, 2013,
Internal Control Over Financlal Reporting

In ptanning and performing our audit of the financial statements; we conslidered the City’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal controf) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose or expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion of the effectiveness of the City's intemal control.

A dafmfamy- in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
{managam&ut‘anemptayeas' in the normal course of performing their assigned functions; to prevent, or
Jdetect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
[ﬁ{}mbmﬁt}n of deficiencies; in Internal control such that there Is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's¢fihancial statements will not be prevented, or detected and comrected on a
timely bagls. A significantwieficlency, is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control
that Is less sewrmth&nfalmatena! weakness. yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
wsth gm&manw]

[{Dw a@ﬂsiﬂaramn B’ xntama Ijcontrol was for the limited purpose described In the first Faragraphof this
{secﬁ%m and was not ﬁaﬁsgnwl fo identify all deficlencles in Internal control thatimightube” material
weakm&ms of significant desﬁamaexes and therefore, material weaknesses origignificant deficiencies may
[exist that were not identified. {éwemtms&xltmataﬂons during our audit we: cfrd;mtudenhfy any deficlencies
in-internal control that we cmmxﬂef to be material weaknesses. However, material weakae&ses-mawx st
that fhaveg not been identified. Weidid Identify certain deficiencies in internal control, [dﬁscmbﬁd inithe
La&c&mmnymg Scb@duieloﬂ?mdmgs and Responses as item 2013-1 that we consider to be'aisignificant]

deficlencyr
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Complilance and other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of Its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompllance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed an mstanoe of noncompliance or other matters that is required to be reported
under Govermment Auditing Standards and which is described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings
and Response as item 2013-2,

The City's Response to Findings

The City's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying Corrective
Action Plan. The City's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied In the audit of the
financlal statements and, accordingly, we express no opinlon on it.

Purpose of this Report

The(purpose af thisfreporﬂls solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
andltheyresultyof that ta&tmg,. and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's intemnal
control or on -ﬁampﬁaﬁm Tiﬁs-report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Govermnment Aud:tmg Sfandmfs in considering the City's internal contro! and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitabléifor any other purpose. Although the intended use of these reports may be
limited, under L'Gul ssanmﬁevssed Statue 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legistative Auditor as a
pubhc document.

A@\(\%%u

Rfdgeland MIssIs
June 13, 2014
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CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Schedule of Findings and Responses
For Year Ended December-31, 2013

Finding: 2013-1
Internal Control Over Financlal Reporting

General Fund Chart of Accounts

Condition: The general fund chart of accounts Is not designed in @ manner that ldentify the
departments/functions expenditures within the general fund.

Cause: The City has not adopted the chart of accounts as recommended by the State of
Louisiana Legislative Auditors as revised July 2004.

Effect: The City's expenditures are not readily identified in the accounting records.

Criterla and or Specific Requirement Louislana State Legislative Auditors "Chart of Accounts for
Louisiana Local Government”, Revised July 2004.

Recommendation. The City should adopt administrative accounting control procedures to adopt the chart
of accounts as recommended by the State of Loulslana Legislative Auditors for local Governments. This
will aid the City in monitoring spending within the varlous departments of the general fund and to budget
its expenditures by department within the general fund.

~

Finding: 2013-2
Compllance and other Matters
Loulslana Budget Law

Condition: The total balance for the general fund was budgeted as a deficit in the original and final
budgets. This is a repeated finding from the prior year audit.

Cause: The general fund has a beginning deficit and a deficit for the year, therefore adopting a balanced
budget was not possible.

Effect: The City's Is not in compliance with the state requirement to adopt a balanced budget.

Criterla and or Specific Requirement. Loulslana Revised Statutes LSA R. S. 39:1310 and 39:1311
require that the City have proposed expenditures less than or equal to the total estimated funds available
for the ensuring year composed of the beginning fund balance plus estimated revenues/receipts for the
year (a deflicit fund balance is not allowed.)

Recommendation: The City should adopt administrative contro} procedures and a plan to reduce the
deficlt in the general fund. Other revenues source should be identified in order to off set the deficit. Going
forward, the City should elimfnate the practice of budgeting a deflcit.
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CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
Status of Prior Year Audit Findings
For Year Ended December 31, 2013

Finding: 12-F1 - Control Procedures

. Current Status: Corrected

Finding: 12-F2 - Loulslana Budget Law
Current Status: Not Corrected

Finding: 12-F3 - Bond Debt Covenants

‘Current Status: Conecled, no longer required due to mfundmg of revenue bond, the covenant
requirements were removed.

Finding: 12-F4 - Internal Controls Over AdJustments to Utiiity Bills
Current Status: Correcled |

Finding: 12:F5 - Water Meter Deposits

Current Status: Corrscted ‘

Finding: 12-F6 - Improper Use of Restricted Funds

Current Status: Corrected |




CITY OF GRAMBLING, LOUISIANA
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
June'13, 2014

'STATE OF LOUISIANA LEGISLATIVE AUDITORS

The City of Grambling respectfully submits the following corrective action plan for the year ended
December 31, 2013.

Name and address of Independent public accounting firm: Banks. Finley, White & Co..-308 Highland
Park Cove, Ridaeland, MS 39167. '

Audit period: Year Ended December 31, 2013.

The findings from our December 31, 2013 schedule of findings and responses are discussed below. The
findings are numbered consistently with the numbers assigned in the schedule of findings and responses.

Finding: 2013-1
Internal Control of Financlal Reporting: General Fund Chart of Accaunts

Recommendation: The City should adopt administrative accounting control procedures to adopt the chart
-of accounts as recommended by the State of Louisiana Legislative Auditors for local Govemments. This

will ald the City in monitoring spending within the various departments of the general fund and to budget
its expenditures by department within the general fund.

Comrective Actlon Plan:
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Finding: 2013-2
Compllance and Other Matters: Loulslana Budget Law

Recommendation: The City should adopt administrative control procedures and a plan to reduce the
deficit in the general fund. Other revenue sources should be identified in order to off-set the deficit. Going
forward, the City should eliminate the practice of budgeting a deficit.

Corrective Action Plan:

If the Loulsiana Legislative Auditors have questions regarding this plan, please call me at (318) 247-6120.

Sincerely,

Edward R. Jones
Mayor
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ity of Grambling

EDWARD R. JONES, MAYOR

OUNCIL MEMBERS HOME OF GRAMBLING STATE UNIVERSITY
BIRDEX COPELAND City of Grambling
cmml::sm Corrective Action Plan
CULLEN JACKSON For Audit Period: Year Ended December 31,2013
ROY JACKSON, Mayor Pro Tempare

STATE OF LOUISIANA LEGISLATIVE AUDITORS

The City of Grambling respectfully submits the following corrective action plan for year ended December 31, 2013,
Name and address of independent public accounting firm: Banks, Finley. White & Company.

308 Highland Park Cove, Ridgeland. MS 39147,

Audit period: Year Ended December 31, 2013

The findings from December 31, 2013, schedule of findings and responses are discussed below. The findings are numbered
consistently with the numbers assigned in the schedule of findings and responscs.

Finding 2013-1- Internal Control of Financial Reporting: General Fund Chart of Actions

Correction Action Plan: The mayor has met with the accountants to begin the process of adopting administrative accounting
control procedures for establishing chart of accounts as recommended by the State of Louisiana Legislative Auditors for local
government.

Finding 2013-2 — Compliance and other Matters: Louisiana Budget Law

Correction Action Plan: The City of Grambling’s general fund met several challenges for 2013: decrease in sales tax revenue in
the amount of $71,286, increase in health insurance premiums approximately $24,000, an cmergency street repair in the amount of
$36,000, and other unexpected costs. Despite the fact that all employees received five percent cut in salary and the city eliminated
approximately four (4) positions, the deficit increased, but it did not increase to the anticipated amount.

In an effort to continue in the alleviation of this deficit, on Friday, June 20, 2014, the Grambling City Council voted to
reduce the workday for all employees from cight to seven hours. This council action will be at a cost savings of approximately
$169,000 a year to the City. Other cost saving measures, such as, energy and fuel costs, supplies, and gradual reduction of the

. workforce through attrition will be implemented.

In addition, it is anticipated that by the end of 2014, the construction of a hotel and retail development will begin near
Interstate 20 on a nine acre tract that is owned by the City. At the closing of the USDA Loan and at the signing of the lease
agreement by the Economic Development Corporation, the City will be reimbursed for the market valuc of the property and any
associated legal costs incurred relating to the project. In addition, the city has also signed a lease agreement to sell an AT&T
tower lease.

Both the Mayor and the Council consider the deficit in our General Fund as a very serious mater, and we are committed
to decreasing and evenlually dissolving it.

If the Louisiana Legislative Auditors have questions regarding this plan, please call me at (318) 247-6120.

Sincerely,

Edward R. Jones, Mayor

City of Grambling
127 King Street * F. U. Box 1UY Phone: (31Y) 2476140
Grambling, Louisiana 71245 57 Fax: (318) 247-0940

“This institution is an equal opportunity provider."




